ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
March 24, 2004
7:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Chair
Representati ve Bruce Wyhrauch, Vice Chair
Representative Vic Kohring

Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Max Gruenberg
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 538

"An Act relating to taxes on cigarettes and tobacco products;
relating to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating to forfeiture of

cigarettes and of property used in t he manuf act ur e,
transportation, or sale of wunstanped cigarettes; relating to
licenses and |icensees wunder the G garette Tax Act; and

providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 493
"An Act relating to adoption and revision of a long-term fiscal
plan for the State of Al aska.”
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 538
SHORT TI TLE: TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTI ES
SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2004



03/ 18/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 04 (H WM L&C, FIN
03/ 24/ 04 (H V&M AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REG STER

W LLI AM CORBUS, Comnri ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Encouraged positive consideration of HB
538.

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager

Tax Division

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned HB 538 and answered questions on
behal f of DOR

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney General

Commerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

G vil Division

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 538
and answered questions on behal f of DCL.

JCEL G LBERTSON, Commi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538 and answered
questions on behal f of DHSS.

JOHN M DDAUGH, M D.

Chi ef of Epi dem ol ogy

Di vision of Public Health

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538 and answered
questi ons.

BOB URATA, M D., Board Menber

Pacific Mountain Affiliate
Anerican Heart Associ ation

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2004



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

M KE ELERDI NG, Owner

Nort hern Sal es

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the

TI M SCHRAGE, Oper ati ons Manager

Brown Jug

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the

EM LY NENON, Al aska Advocacy Manager
Anmerican Cancer Society

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

MARI AH WARREN
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

STEVE WARREN, Menber

Al aska Tobacco Control Alliance

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director

AARP

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

KATTARYNA STI LES

Al aska Native Heal th Board

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

JENNI FER APP, Al aska Advocacy Director
Anerican Heart Association

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

Bl LL BOWMENS, Tobacco Educat or

Al aska Native Medical Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3-

of HB 538.

di scussi on of HB 538.

di scussi on of HB 538.

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

HB

HB

HB

HB

HB

HB

HB

538.

538.

538.

538.

538.

538.

538.

March 24, 2004



JOELLE HALL
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

SHELLEY WALLACE
D |I'l1ingham Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

JEAN MARI E CRUMB, Chair-el ect

Al aska Tobacco Control Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

CAROLI NE RENNER

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-15, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal | ed the House Special Commttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 7:05 a.m Represent ati ves Hawker,
Samuel s, Kohring, WIson, Mses, and Ogg were present at the
call to order. Represent ati ves Weyhrauch and G uenberg arrived
as the neeting was in progress. Representative Seaton was al so
present.

HB 538- TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTI ES

Number 0157

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 538, "An Act relating to taxes on cigarettes and
tobacco products; relating to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating
to forfeiture of cigarettes and of property wused in the
manuf acture, transportation, or sale of unstanped cigarettes;
relating to licenses and |licensees under the Cigarette Tax Act;
and providing for an effective date.”

CHAI R HAWKER announced, due to an error regarding public notice,

that no action on the bill wll be taken today and public
testinmony will be extended until Friday.
Nunber 0231

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2004



WLLIAM CORBUS, Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Revenue (DOR), introduced HB 538 on behalf of the

Ofice of the Governor. The governor, in the 2005 budget,
specified a need for over $100 nmillion for new revenue
enhancenments and has suggested this tobacco tax bill as part of
the solution, he said. He urged the conmmttee to positively

consi der HB 538.
Number 0400

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue, nentioned that she has been the program manager for
cigarette and tobacco tax since 1997. She explained that [in HB
538] the cigarette tax would increase from $1 to $2 for a pack

of 20 cigarettes. For other tobacco products (OTP), the tax
woul d increase from 75 percent to 100 percent of the whol esale
cost. The cigarette tax increase in the past was dedicated to
the school fund, but this tinme all of the increase will go to

t he general fund, she said.

M5. BALES related that the cigarette tax is fairly old and has
been around since 1949. Sonme technical corrections were needed

to avoid double taxation, she said. As an exanple, she
indicated, "If | were to hold a buyer's license and bring
product in, the definition of a buyer says that | have to pay
tax unless | buy from another licensee, and it defines those

| i censees; however, it left out our |icensees that we have that
are fromout of state."

Number 0559

IVS. BALES explained that the bill woul d al |l ow, during
enforcement, the state to seize assets that are used in the
comm ssion of a crinme that violates the Cgarette Tax Act. That
provision is currently not in place, and only cigarettes that
are unstanped can be seized, she noted. The | anguage in the
bill conmes directly fromTitle 4, the Al coholic Beverage Contro
Board statutes, which says assets can be seized when used to
vi ol ate those provisions, she said.

M5. BALES went on to say that another significant part of the
bill would institute a floor stock tax, the difference between
the old and new tax rates on the date of enactnent. In 1997
there was no floor stock tax, and there were significant anmounts
of stockpiling and | osses estimated to be $7 mllion in revenue
because retailers and distributors brought in large quantities
of cigarettes to avoid paying tax at the new rate. Those

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2004



savings were not passed along to the consuner, and there were
mul ti pl e conplaints. She pointed out that nost states and the
federal governnent have floor stock taxes when they institute
new t axes.

Nunmber 0809

M5. BALES remarked that there will need to be an aggressive
enf or cenent program in pl ace to curb bl ack- mar ket i ng,
boot | egging, and Internet sales due to the large increase in the
tax. She pointed out that Alaska will not have the highest tax.
Rhode Island will have a $2.45 per pack tax beginning July 1,
and New Jersey's tax is $2.05 per pack. Since the tax is a
| arge increase, an incentive for bootlegging and black-
mar keti ng, aggressive enforcenment wll be needed to protect
revenues and businesses that are conplying with the | aw.

CHAI R HAWKER not ed the presence of Representatives Wyhrauch and
G uenberg.

Nunmber 0937

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if there are mninum anounts
regardi ng confiscated property.

MS. BALES answered that there are sone m ni mum anounts, but they

are very low. Inporting less than 1,000 cigarettes is a Cass A
m sdenmeanor, inporting 1000 or nore cigarettes is a Cass C
felony and would subject the person to seizure of their
property, she rel ated. She noted the bill has provisions that

state, if the vehicles are in villages and are the sole neans of
transportation, they would not be seized.

CHAIR HAWKER announced that Mke Barnhill from (DOL) is
avai l abl e to answer questions about the bill.

Nunber 1100

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that M. Barnhill cone
forward to testify because the bill would not be going to the

House Judiciary Standing Conmittee, and he said he has concerns
about the forfeiture provisions.

Number 1156

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2004



M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney General, Commercial/Fair
Business Section, Civil Division, Departnent of Law (DQ),
i ntroduced hi nsel f.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Internet sales are clearly
covered under this bill

M5. BALES replied that they are. She reported that the
cigarette tax statutes were enacted in 1949, and the taxes were
levied on the inportation of cigarettes for sale or personal
consunption, which would include cigarettes purchased from the
| nt er net.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i nqui red, "Wat about the person who is
selling cigarettes [on the Internet]?"

MS. BALES said the person who inports pays the tax, and [ Al aska]
has limted ability to go after out-of-state sellers because of
jurisdictional problens. [ Alaska] only has jurisdiction over
the in-state purchaser. She noted that there are federal |aws
that require the out-of-state seller to provide information to
the state regarding the sales made to individuals and others in
the state, but those federal |laws are violated constantly. She
said it is an area where, with federal help, violators could be
pr osecut ed.

Nunmber 1336

CHAIR HAWKER requested that M. Bales explain the difference
bet ween cigarettes and OPT

M5. BALES defined cigarettes as anything that is wapped in
paper, and, under excise tax laws, if cigarettes are inported
for sale or personal consunption, the tax is levied on inport.
O her tobacco products (OTP) are cigars, snuff, chew, and | oose-
| eaf ed tobacco, and are covered by a different area of statute.
The tax on OIP is levied when product is brought into the state
for sale, but there is no tax on product that is brought into
the state for consunption, she said.

CHAI R HAWKER noted that is a point that will be addressed again
| ater in the neeting.

Number 1443

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG inquired if someone who wuses the
Internet to buy cartons of cigarettes would know to fill out a

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2004



tax form He asked, practically, what would happened in that
case.

M5. BALES responded that this is an issue that has been
addressed since the last tax increase, and assessnents to over
1, 000 individuals who have purchased cigarettes through the nmail

by Internet mil order have been sent out. She said
Representative Guenberg's point is well taken about the
additional seizure provisions and how that would work. She
expl ai ned:
Ceneral ly, in practice, what we've done, we' ve
received information showing that they've brought
pr oduct into the state, and we've sent out
assessnents. W, by law, are required to charge

interest, but we have sone discretion in charging
penalties. W' ve agreed to waive penalties if they'll
cone forward and pay the tax and interest. It's a
great educational tool.

M5. BALES continued to say that when a tax is raised or
instituted, there are businesses in the state that are in
conpliance, and if people are forced to buy out of state and not
pay the tax, those businesses are harned. She noted that this
is an argunment for aggressive enforcenent.

Number 1650

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how the individual Al askan wl
know to pay the tax and how nmuch it is.

M5. BALES replied there will be public notices and retailers
wi |l post notices.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how the person will know how to
pay the tax.

M5. BALES said the person could contact DOR to get the
information and, also, could look at the website. Public
noti ces have contact nunbers, she added.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG related that | ast year, during
testinmony on the sales tax, there was discussion about the
difficulty nmerchants would have in collecting the tax. He
raised the issue that now, potentially, every snoking Al askan is
being asked to go through a fairly conplicated process of

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2004



getting forns and then remtting the tax. He asked Ms. Bales
how wi despread evasi on of this tax woul d be prevented.

M5. BALES responded that it is a problem area, but that this | aw
has been on the books since 1949, and individuals have already
been required to obtain a license, fill out forms, and pay taxes
to DOR for a product that has been brought into the state. Wen
DOR di scovers that people have made purchases over the Internet,
letters are sent, forns are given out, and education is provided
for a | ong-standing | aw

Nunber 1945

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how many packs 1,000 cigarettes
is and then said, "Fifty packs." He questioned if sonmeone
bought 50 packs and inadvertently didn't pay the tax, would they
be conmtting a felony.

MS. BALES replied that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opi ned that the anpunt is pretty steep
and not that many peopl e are obeying the |aw.

MS. BALES said Representative Guenberg's point is well taken,
but stated sone people say they are not aware of the tax, when

in fact, they are. She argued that the responsibility is on the
peopl e to becone aware of the taxes they are subject to.

Number 2000

CHAIR HAWKER asked for clarification whether the bill is
changing the classification of the offense.

M5. BALES answered that it does not.

CHAIR HAWKER offered that many of the issues being raised by
Representative Guenberg are itenms at issue under current
statute that are not being addressed by this bill, as well.

M5. BALES agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked if anyone has ever been
prosecuted for a felony [for cigarette tax evasion].

M5. BALES replied, one person.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if it was recently.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2004



M5. BALES said yes, there was a felony conviction against an
i ndi vi dual who brought in cigarettes on nultiple occasions, even
after being given notice of a first offense. The tax interest
and penalties were well over $500,000, she said.

Nunber 2147

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what the tax increase on 5 cartons
of cigarettes would be.

MS. BALES replied $100, at the new rate.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how nmuch a pack of cigarettes would
cost.

MS. BALES said the average cost right nowis $4.50 a pack

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said [with the increase in tax] it would
be $5.50 a pack, which is quite a bit of noney, especially if
people are reselling them She asked what would happen to an
i ndustrious 16-year-old who decides to buy cigarettes over the
Internet and resells them

MS. BALES said it is a good question, and explained that on the
first offense, the first step is to give notice and assess the
tax and penalties. Generally, she said, there have not been
repeat of fenders.

Number 2452

CHAI R HAWKER questioned M. Bales on sone of the technical
aspects of the bill. He referred to page 1, [line 8] where it
says the license issued to a direct-buying retailer is increased
to $50. He noted, when looking at the statute this provision

affects, there are a nunber of categories of I|icense fees: a
manuf acturer, a distributor, a vending machine operator, direct-
buying retailer, and personal use or buyer's |icense. Leavi ng

out the personal wuse category, under current statute, the
manuf acturer has a $5 license, the distributor-whol esaler has a
$50 |icense, the vending machi ne operator has a $25 license, and
the direct-buying retailer has a $25 |icense. He remarked that
the only category that is being raised in the bill is the
direct-buying Ilicense, and he wondered if M. Bales has
considered making all comercial categories consistent at a $50
| evel . He asked how ot her states handl ed commercial |icenses.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2004



M5. BALES replied that Al aska license fees are mninmal conpared

to other states. She said the reason DOR considered raising
only direct-buying retail licenses is, because of the cigarette
stanp tax, there are |long-standing |icensees who have the
direct-buying retail license that wll no longer be selling
cigarettes, but who will be continuing to inport OTP for sale.
The OTP license is $50, so there is now a class of direct-buying
retailers who will have to buy that license. She said this wll

| evel the playing field, and, also, there is no significant
di fference between a wholesale distributor |license and a direct-
buying retail I|icense because they all nake cigarette sales in
the state. She said Representative Hawker's point is well taken
because any effort to nmake the fees equal nekes sense.

Nunber 2807

CHAIR HAWKER predicted an anmendnent to that issue would be
fort hcom ng. He asked when the floor tax would be assessed,
due, and payabl e.

MS. BALES replied that wunder the language in the bill, any
person who nmakes sales of cigarettes in the state would have to
take an inventory on the effective date of the act and remt the
difference in tax to the departnment within 30 days.

CHAI R HAWKER remarked that it could be a substantial amount for
retailers who have commercial quantities on hand.

M5. BALES agreed it could be.

CHAIR HAWKER asked if DOR mght consider phasing in the floor
stock tax paynents over a period of tine.

MS. BALES stated there would be no opposition from DOR over that
possibility, adding that DOR does not want the floor stock tax
to be a hindrance to anyone's busi ness.

CHAI R HAWKER rel ated that [phasing in] would al so be considered

at a later tine [for a possible anendnent]. He asked for
clarification on the forfeiture provisions and wondered if they
mrrored the provisions currently in place for alcohol

violations in the state.
Number 3000

MR. BARNHI LL responded that [the forfeiture provisions in HB
538] don't mrror the [alcohol violation provisions], but are

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2004



very simlar. He nentioned that DOL began with AS 04.16.220 and
wor ked to update those provisions, adding enhancenents.

M5. BALES noted that the forfeiture provisions would not apply
to individuals that bring product into the state for personal
consunption, and only apply to businesses that do resale.

Nunber 3131

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Bar nhi | | if there are
constitutional problens with taxing out-of-state vendors.

MR. BARNHI LL spoke about nexus, the power of the state to tax

extraterritorial entities. If a conpany is selling cigarettes
over the Internet, and has no physical presence in the state,
and all they do is direct cigarettes through the steam of

commerce, the state has no power to access a tax over that
entity, he reported.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Barnhill if he is famliar
with the provision in the California code that extends "their
l ong-arm statute” to the maximum extent permtted under the
Constitution.

MR. BARNHI LL said Al aska has the sane "long-arm statute.”
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Barnhill what he thought
about having a provision in [HB 538] which would allow the tax
to reach to the maxi mum extent permtted under the Constitution,
so that the manufacturers can be taxed, rather than nmaking
felons out of Al askans.

MR. BARNHI LL responded that he is not sure it is necessary,
because under current law there already is the ability to go to
t hat extent.

Nunber 3414

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Barnhill to elaborate on the
i ssue of nexus.

MR. BARNHI LL said he didn't know what el se to say.
CHAI R HAWKER opened public testinony.

Nunber 3441

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked Ms. Bale if the states that didn't have
a forfeiture provision, and have instituted one, showed an
i ncrease in conpliance.

MS. BALES said she has no know edge of that information.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked how peopl e who purchase by Internet are
di scover ed.

Nunmber 3525

MS. BALES answered that federal assistance is required because
there is a long-standing federal law called the Jenkins Act
which requires out-of-state sellers who ship cigarettes to
provide information to the taxing authority in the state where

those cigarettes end up. It gives the nanme of the person who
purchased the product, where it was shipped, and the nunber of
cigarettes. She explained that DOR has used that |aw and has

worked with the [United States Attorney General's Ofice] to get
that information fromthe seller

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if federal |aw requires people who are
selling tobacco products to file a form that shows they are
entering into a state's taxabl e conmerce.

M5. BALES replied that there are ranpant violations of the
Jenkins Act, so DOR | ooks for cases where it is known that an
out-of-state seller has shipped cigarettes into the state. The
[ Al cohol and Tobacco Tax Trade Bureau] provides assistance and
has jurisdiction over those | aws, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked, "So, you're after both the out-of-
state supplier, on the federal si de, and the in-state
pur chaser ?"

MS. BALES said that is correct. She added, "There have been two
recent state court cases in federal court where the federal
court has stated that the state has the ability to sue, in
federal court, those interstate sellers, out of state, to obtain
t hat docunentation.”

Nunber 3722
REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked what the public policy basis for
having a tax like this is, and whether it is to discourage

snoki ng or gain revenues. He asked why tobacco is being singled
out, and what the public is being told.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2004



Number 3749

MR. CORBUS replied that the bill has a revenue factor and is
trying to di scourage snoking.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that is what he figured.
CHAI R HAWKER cal | ed on Conm ssioner Gl bertson to testify.
Nunber 3847

JOEL G LBERTSON, Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Departmment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), responding to
Representative Wyhrauch's question, said that one of the
driving reasons for supporting this legislation is because of
the public health inpact of tobacco use in Alaska. He nentioned
a new report done by the Epidem ol ogy Section of the Division of
Public Health that would soon be available to the committee
called Tobacco in the Geatland: A Portrait of Alaska's Leading
Cause of Death. He relayed:

Tobacco use in the state of Alaska is our |eading
public health threat, and it's also our nunber one
cause of death, disability, and chronic illness in
this state. Hi storically, we have seen, through a
nunber of econonetric studies and also work by our
departnment, that the increasing in revenues - tax - on
tobacco products is an effective policy tool in
improving public health around tobacco consunption.
In Alaska increased tobacco tax has already been
associated wth a drastic reduction in tobacco
utilization. 1In 1997 when the tobacco tax was raised,
[until] 2002, we saw a 30 percent decline in tobacco
utilization attributed to the tax being inpl enent ed.

Increasing the wunit price for tobacco is a very
effective tool, as | ment i oned, in ternms of
controlling utilization of tobacco products, but it's
nost effective anpbngst youth. A $1 per pack cigarette

tax increase will directly help the state in reducing
the wutilization of tobacco products by mnors. e
have seen a precipitous decline in tobacco consunption
anongst mnors - 50 percent since 1995. W did a
youth risk behavior survey in 1995 that was

statistically valid. W did another one in 2003, and
in those studies we've seen alnost a 50 percent

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2004



decline in wutilization of tobacco products. e
believe a further drop in use of tobacco rates wll
occur as a result of this tax increase, and we believe
it wll lead to a 15 percent decline from current
| evel s, which will translate into 1,800 |ives saved
from the effects of premature death due to tobacco
utilization.

Nunber 4020

COW SS| ONER d LBERTSON conti nued:

As | said, increasing the tobacco product tax is an
effective tool. It's also an effective tool for
adul ts. It's estimated that the increase cost of
purchasing cigarettes fromthis tax increase will |ead
to 3,500 adult snokers in the state of Alaska finally
quitting the addiction of tobacco. W also will see
from that, 800 individuals whose lives will be saved
from a snoking-related death. There are other
vul nerabl e populations. Fromthis tax we woul d expect
to see, in terns of snoking decreases by expectant

not hers, 850 babies being spared from exposure to
mat er nal snoki ng.

As we look at where there are health disparities
continuing to exist in the state of Alaska, [one
exists] largely between the Alaska Native population

and the general popul ation. W believe that Al aska
Natives will have the nost to gain from this tax
I ncrease. W see, right now, that Al aska Natives

snoke at alnost twice the average of the state's
general population, and we also see, anongst high
school students, that Al aska Native snoking preval ence
is four tines that of other students. An increase tax
will disproportionally provide an additional benefit
to lower income brackets which sonetinmes tend to be
nost at risk for these health di seases.

The Canpaign for Tobacco Free Kids did an analysis,
and their assunption is that within five years the
health care savings from pregnancies and births that
have damage resul ting from t obacco pr oduct

consunption, wll save the state $1.6 mllion, and
that, in terns of fewer snoking-related heart attacks
and strokes, the savings would be $1.8 nmllion. But

the long-term health care savings from adult and youth

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- March 24, 2004



snoki ng declines would be $146 million, and that's not
just to the State of Alaska, but also in terms of
overall health care costs in the state.

Number 4254

COM SSI ONER d LBERTSON continued to say that the previous tax
raised $47 mllion, and this tax increase will raise over $30
mllion. A study in 1997 of the actual cost of tobacco to the
state found $133 mllion in tobacco-rel ated nedi cal expenditures
and $137 mllion of lost productivity because of tobacco-rel ated
illness and death, he related. There were 17 econonetric
studies done on the effect of price increases on tobacco use,
and every study found a decrease of use with an increase in tax,
a 1.5 to 4 percent decline for every 10 percent increase in the
tax. He terned the tax an appropriate tool to hel p nake inroads
on the greatest public health threat in the state.

Number 4438

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Bales to join Comm ssioner Glbertson to
answer questions. He asked them about the revenue changes of
$35.5 mllion per year on a linear basis going forward in the
fiscal note, and wondered if they had considered the elasticity
in the market that this increase would generate. He asked them
to reconcile the fiscal note.

MS. BALES responded that they did consider elasticity, and $35.5
mllion 1is the average between the I|owest and highest
el asticity. She said they did factor in the reductions of
snoki ng due to the increased price.

Nunmber 4606

CHAI R HAWKER asked if Conmm ssioner G lbertson's estimates are in
line with what is being used for high and | ow esti nates.

MS. BALES replied that they are in |ine.
CHAI R HAWKER asked if they had discussed this issue previously.

M5. BALES replied that they hadn't, but the information about
price elasticity in the revenue is wdely distributed by DOR

COM SSI ONER G LBERTSON added that these are well-published and

general | y-accepted econonetric studies on the correlation
bet ween tobacco consunption and the increase in tobacco tax.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -16- March 24, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER requested docunentation that the fiscal note is
based on agreenent of the paraneters of the elasticity nodel

TAPE 04-15, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked Comm ssioner G| bertson, "G ven
the data you' ve cited, why not introduce a bill that outlaws
cigarettes?”

Number 4600

COWMWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON said he responds from a public health
perspective and believes that tobacco consunption does not bring
much to society and causes trenendous damage as the nunber one
health threat in Alaska. He pointed out that it is not against
the law to consunme tobacco products and said, "W believe that
the $1 increase in tax 1is an appropriate step towards
di scouragi ng tobacco product consunption in the state.”

CHAIR HAVWKER asked Representative Wyhrauch if that was an
appropriate answer.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that he didn't know why "we're
nickel and dimng it up to where we're going to go," and
suggested Al aska be "nunber one."

Number 4439

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS nentioned other sin taxes, and conpared
the small anount of drinkers that drive to the |arger nunber of
soci al drinkers. He asked if it was simlar in the health-care
arena where there are a small nunber of snokers w th high-dollar
cl ai ns.

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON suggested Dr. M ddaugh answer that
question because he has done studies on both al cohol and tobacco
condi tions.

Nunber 4328

JOHN M DDAUGH, M D., Chief of Epidem ology, D vision of Public
Heal th, Departnent of Health and Social Services, replied that
there certainly is a smaller nunber of individuals who snoke and
have nore serious, adverse health consequences that account for
a greater cost in terns of nedical care and |ost productivity.
He said it is not a one-to-one relationship, but all snokers

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2004



increase their risk of different adverse health effects and al so
contribute to the exposure of nonsnokers to second- hand snoke.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS said he was trying to conpare snoking to
al cohol where a small nunber of drinkers create problens. He
asked if every snoker is going to have a health problem

DR. M DDAUGH replied that the question is an excellent one, but
it can't be sinply answered because it is not possible to

predi ct which individuals who are heavy snokers will have health
probl ens. He nentioned George Burns as an exanple of a life-
| ong snoker who suffered no health-related problens. He related
that nost individuals will have sonme |evel of adverse health
consequences, and sone wll have devastating and early
consequences. Science is not yet able to predict who those
individuals will be, he noted. I ndi vi dual s who snoke and then

stop, substantially reduce their future risks, he said.
Number 4049

REPRESENTATI VE GG, foll ow ng Comm ssi oner Gl bertson's
suggestion to raise the tax one nore dollar, said that woul d put
[Alaska] at the top [of those states charging a tobacco tax].
He suggested there may be an increase of out-state-purchases by
habi t ual snokers, and inquired if M. G lbertson has any records
from other states to show what happens when taxes are raised in
nei ghbori ng states. He offered an exanple of growing up in
Mai ne where there was a fairly heavy tax, but New Hanpshire had
no tax, and so people would go there to purchase cigarettes.

COMM SSI ONER G LBERTSON deferred to DOR to answer the question
He related that in Alaska it is nore expensive to travel to
anot her state to purchase cigarettes.

Number 3917

MS. BALES responded to Representative Ogg's question by stating
that there are wi despread problens with that issue when certain
states have raised their taxes. For exanple, she noted that in
New York City the tax is $1.50 a pack, the state tax is $1.50

and in less than five hours a person could drive to Virginia

where the tax is 2.5 cents a pack. New York has had severe
smuggl i ng probl ens, she said. In Alaska, "in five hours you're
still in Alaska, but in two days you can be in Witehorse,

Yukon, and in Canada you have to |ook at the conbination of
their federal and provincial taxes,"” she explained. That tax is

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2004



$2.91 a pack, whereas, currently in Alaska, the tax rate is
$1.81 a pack. |If there is an increase of $1, it would still be
cheaper to purchase cigarettes in Al aska, she concluded. A
greater concern to Alaska is mail-order fraud, she pointed out,
when a comon carrier knowngly ships cigarettes into the state

to soneone who is not properly |icensed. Part of the stanp
| egi sl ation that becanme effective in January has provisions for
shi pping restrictions, which is an enforcenent tool. Aggressive

enforcenment is the answer, she enphasi zed.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG said a lot of people travel from Alaska to
other states and may purchase |large quantities of cigarettes on
their trips. He suggested having the amount of tax increase be
simlar in value to the price in states nobst frequented by
Al askans, |ike Washington, in order to prevent a new class of
crimnals frombeing created. He asked why the tax is so high.

COW SSIONER G LBERTSON replied that there is an increnental
health benefit for each percent of tax increase, so a $1
increase is twice as effective as a 50-cent increase. He said
the bill is a strong effort to address the nunber one public
health threat in the state.

Nunber 3532
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said the health aspect is very inportant.

She related that after she studied the health ramfications of
snoking, even as a nurse, she was surprised at the size of the

problem in lost work productivity. She read, "Cancer is
currently the second |eading cause of death to all Alaskans and
the leading cause of death for Al aska Natives." She remarked

that nore Al aska Native teens snoke [than all other races].
CHAI R HAWKER asked what Representative WIson was citing.
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied it is a letter from the Anmerican

Cancer Society [in the commttee nenbers' packets]. She
continued to read:

Research shows that one-third of all cancers are
t obacco-related and alnost all tobacco-users first
become addicted as children. By increasing the
state's tobacco tax, it is a known correlation to

reduci ng youth snoking, and we are taking a critical
step in stemmng the tide of rising health care costs
to the state and needl ess death and disability in our
comunities.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE WLSON referred to the State of Al aska
Epi dem ol ogy Bulletin and read:

Tobacco attributable disease in Al aska accounts for
approximately 600 deaths per vyear, nore than five
times as many caused by notor vehicle crashes, and
nearly 100 times as many deaths as those caused by
AIDS, and 120 lives are |lost each year because of
secondhand snoke.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON next quoted in part from the Al aska
Tobacco Control Alliance letter:

Al aska has had trenendous success rate in reducing
yout h snoki ng. I ncreasing the tobacco tax is a sound
public health decision. Affects on youth consunption
are, it decreases by 15 percent youth snoking
increases the total nunber of youth alive today who
will not becone snokers, |ike 9,000 of them The
nunber of youth alive today saved from premature
snoki ng- caused deat h, al nost 3, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON enphasized that the key fact is that
adults do not start snoking, children do, and virtually all
snokers today started before they were 19 years old. The future
snokers of Al aska are our children, she concl uded.

Number 3100

BOB URATA, MD., Board Menber, Pacific Muntain Affiliate,
American Heart Association, explained that he is a famly doctor
practicing in Juneau. He stated that the mssion of the Pacific
Mountain Affiliate is to reduce death and disability from heart
di sease and stroke by 25 percent by 2010. He said the purpose
of his testinony is to give exanples fromhis practice this past
year of tobacco-related diseases. He nentioned that he has been
in practice since 1984 and has known these people for many
years.

DR. URATA descri bed several of his patients:

A man in his eighties who has snoked for 65 years
begi nning at age 18. He quit in 1999, and anong his
di seases are carotid artery disease which required him
to have an endarterectony, which is a roto-rooter to
clean out his arteries. He also had an abdom nal

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2004



aneurysm which is a ballooning of the big aorta, the
big vessel that goes down to the |egs. He had that
repaired. He also then developed, in 1999, one in his
chest called a thoracic aortic aneurysm That was
treated wi th nedicines. Then, earlier this year, we
di scovered that he had right lung cancer that had
spread throughout his body and he's currently dying
fromthat.

A 77-year-old man who snoked for 45 years, since 18
years of age - he quit in 1989. He has had coronary
di sease that required balloon angioplasty twice, in
1989 and in 2001. He also had Ilung cancer and
enphysema di agnosed in 1995 and then another cancer in
his left lung in 1996. But, he has continued to be a
survivor due to good nedical care. He now has
problenms with walking and shortness of breath from
these cigarette-related disabilities.

A 61l-year-old man who snoked for 40 years. He started
at 18 years of age and quit in the year 2000. He had
a stroke in 1990 and he had a heart attack and bal |l oon
angi oplasty in 2000. He «currently is disabled,
paral yzed on the right side, living at hone, though.

A 77-year-old woman who snoked two packs a day for 35
years. She started at age 17 and quit in 1978 but
then developed left lung cancer in 2001 and then the
next year they found cancer in her left kidney, which
is a cancer that is associated wth snoking. She
currently lives in a nursing hone because of these
di sabilities.

W have a younger woman, 49-years-old, who snoked a
pack a day for 20 years since she was 27, and she quit
when she was discovered to have left lung cancer that
traveled to her brain. She currently can't work and
has sei zure di sorder

And, finally, | have a 66-year-old gentleman who
snoked for 32 years - since about age 25. He
currently still snokes, he can't quit, and, as a

result, he has had an acute heart attack, and had a
bal | oon angioplasty in 1994, and then in 2002 he had a
coronary bypass. He also has had a snall stroke in
1998 and in 2000, and in currently - in late 2003 - we

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2004



di scovered him to have col on cancer. He's conti nui ng
t o undergo chenot her apy.

DR. URATA said he hopes these exanples show that snoking can be
a very devastating disease, and he enphasized that it doesn't
just affect one organ system but nultiple organ systens.
Modern nedical care helps people survive, but can't make them
whol e again, he said. He related:

Snmoki ng increases the risk to stroke, sudden cardiac
death, heart attacks, aortic aneurysns, and peri pheral
vascul ar di sease. Snoking is responsible for 85
percent of lung cancers that occur. It is also
associated with ten different cancers: nouth, throat,
| arynx, esophagus, stonach, pancreas, cervix, Kkidney,
urethra, and bladder. It also accounts for 30 percent
of all cancer deaths.

The biggest thing that we can do is to prevent our

young people from ever starting to snoke. You' ve
heard statistics that describe how effectively the
price of cigarettes reduces consunption. In order to

reduce total consunption of cigarettes, we have to
prevent the snoking habit from starting and that is

why we target the teenagers. | believe that this bil
w Il help reduce new teenage snokers. | hope you wl|
support this bill because |I believe it will lead to a

heal t hi er and nore productive Al aska.
Number 2525

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON thanked Dr. Urata for bringing exanples
for the conmttee to hear, and spoke of her own personal
experience with her father who snoked for 50 years and quit when
he was 65. Eight years later he died from enphysema at age 72.
She said her brother died last year at 52 from snoking-rel ated
cancers. She restated her strong feelings about this issue.

DR, URATA, in response to Representative Wyhrauch's conment
about outlawing cigarettes, said if the cigarette was a new
product and had to go through the Food and Drug Adm nistration

(FDA), it would never be approved because of the fact that it
causes so much cancer. He nmaintained that because of the
current political climte, cigarettes will never be elimnated

but legislation such as this bill can nmake it harder for people

to start snoking.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2004



Nunmber 2336

REPRESENTATI VE MOSES asked if the use of marijuana has the sane
adverse health effects as tobacco.

DR. URATA said he isn't sure, but, personally, he is opposed to
its use. He nentioned he has read studies that show that
marijuana can cause problens, but he has never read anything
that says it causes cancer.

REPRESENTATI VE MOSES said Unal aska recently had a drug bust and
$20,000 worth of marijuana was confiscated. He wondered if it
makes sense to |legalize marijuana, although he said he woul dn't
advocate for it.

DR. URATA had no comment.

CHAI R HAWKER drew the committee's attention to witten docunents
in their packets prepared by M ke Elerding from Northern Sal es.

Nunber 2140

M KE ELERDI NG, Omer, Northern Sal es, explained that even though
47 percent of his business is with cigarettes and OTP, he is not
opposed, in principle, to HB 538 because he recognizes the
health risks associated with tobacco products. He al so said he
agrees with the idea to restrict youth access to these products
and that the price increase in the bill would act as a deterrent
to youth snoking. He asked the conmttee to renenber that
tobacco is a legal adult product and adults have the right to
make i ndependent decisions. He said he does not want governnent
or other well-intentioned groups telling him what to do. He
said he thinks it is appropriate for the governnment to tax
t obacco products, but that the degree of taxation and unintended
consequences of the proposed tax are the issues. As a licensed
dealer of tobacco goods, he stated his concern about the
uni nt ended consequences of the bill

MR. ELERDI NG expl ained that he has been selling cigarettes and
OrP, as well as paying and collecting the excise tax, since
1962. Last year alone, he stated, his business paid $4 mllion
in tobacco tax. He spoke of Cctober 1997 when the state raised
the tax from $2.90 to $10.00 a carton and there were a nunber of
uni nt ended consequences. The first consequence was a problem
W th break-ins causing an additional need for security neasures
at a cost to the business, and the second consequence was an
increase in the carrying costs of inventory, which neant an

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -23- March 24, 2004



increase in the line of «credit, costs of carrying accounts
recei vabl e, and insurance. Last year his business worked with
DOR to facilitate the cigarette tax stanp |egislation which had
a bondi ng requirenent consequence. He said it was difficult to
secure a bond from the insurance conpany. Now he said he has a
$1 mllion bond secured, but the higher tax would require a $2
mllion bond to be secured which will be very difficult.

MR. ELERDING related, "Like it or not, we're partners with the
state in collecting and remtting the tax to the state,” he
sai d. He enphasized that the state is collecting and naking
much nore noney on the sale of tobacco products than private
industry in Alaska is. He stated a concern about the OIB tax, a
75 percent excise tax which is charged, at present, to tobacco
distributors doing business within the state, and not to nuail
order businesses or Internet conpanies. He said it 1is
i npossi ble for Al aska distributors to conpete under these terns.

Nunber 1540
MR. ELERDI NG says he believes that this tax will cause Al aska

distributors to seek alternate sources of supply through the
Internet and other non-traditional distribution channels, which

will cause nore tax evasion and bootl egging. He said he
supports the state's increasing its enforcenent efforts and the
hiring of six new enforcenent staff. He stated his intent to

work with the state to insure that he is in conpliance wth
Al aska tax laws and that youth access is restricted.

CHAI R HAWKER t hanked M. Elerding for his continuing efforts to
work with the state on this matter. He said he is commtted to
working with DOR to clean up the mmjor issues nentioned: OIP
mai | order, bonding, and floor tax.

Nunber 1320

TIM SCHRAGE, Operations Mnager, Brown Jug, shared his concerns
about HB 538. He spoke of his business's zero tol erance policy
of selling alcohol and tobacco products to mnors. He opi ned
that the tax increase will drive consuners to underground retai

channels such as the Internet, and the state has not been
effective in collecting taxes on such sales. In Anchorage there
is a wholesale nmunicipal tax on top of the cigarette tax which
forces people to drive to the [Matanuska-Susitna Valley] to buy

cigarettes, he said. He predicted there will be new jobs in
trafficking illegal "grey market" cigarettes, which are made to
| ook |ike popular brands, and noted that the potential for

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2004



profit is huge. He expressed |lack of confidence in the state's
ability to nanage bootlegging and illegal snoke shops. He said
it is his understanding that illegal tobacco is the nunber one
product seized by the U S. Custom Service.

MR. SCHRAGE rel ated other concerns about the econom c inpacts of

the tax on businesses. He said the potential inpact of an
additional $1 to the floor tax wll cause his conmpany to pay
over $200,000 for inventory for the rest of his econom c career.
He said he also pays a retail floor tax to the city of
Anchorage, and an increase in the cost of inventory increases
the insurance cost. He maintained that this tax increase wll
not solve the fiscal problens and wll increase crimna
activity.

CHAIR HAWKER thanked M. Schrage for his testinmony and noted
that his witten docunent is included in the record.

Number 0754

EM LY NENON, Al aska Advocacy Manager, Anerican Cancer Society,
said she is based in Anchorage and has been in Al aska all of her
adult life.

CHAIR HAVWKER nentioned that M. Nenon's nmaterials were also
i ncluded in the nenbers' packets.

M5. NENON said the issue at hand is not a conplicated one. The
Anmerican Cancer Society's mssion is to elimnate cancer as a

maj or health problem by preventing cancer, saving lives, and
di m nishing suffering from cancer, she said. One-third of all
cancers are tobacco related, and snoking accounts for at |east
30 percent of all cancer deaths, she related. She said, "Wat

it really boils down to is, whose brother is it? Wose nother
is it?" She called tobacco use a pediatric epidemc; it's kids
who start snoking. When the price of tobacco increases, kids
and pregnant wonen are the first ones affected, and that's where
[this bill] can start naking a difference on this issue, she
sai d.

IVB. NENON submitted testinmony from the  American Lung
Associ ati on.

CHAIR HAWKER replied if it is not in the packet he wll nmnake
certain it gets into the record.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -25- March 24, 2004



M5. NENON pointed out that Al askans recognize that [cigarette

snoking] is a problem and that there is a |link between
i ncreasing tobacco taxes and saving lives, as reported in a
survey done in February. Over two-thirds of Al askans support

this increase in tobacco tax.
CHAI R HAVWKER asked if the survey was a voluntary survey.

M5. NENON replied that it was a statistically valid survey done
by a group called QEV Analytics based in Washington, D.C , and
the results were consistent across the country and contained no
surpri ses. She said the issue of Internet sales - black-
marketing - is a big red herring in this commttee neeting. She
suggested the commttee get a copy of Tobacco in the Geatl and:
A Portrait of Alaska's Leadi ng Cause of Death and check out page
100 whi ch expl ai ns where people buy their tobacco. It says that
only 4 percent of adult snokers reported that they bought
cigarettes over the Internet, through mail order, or through
ot her 800- nunber sources over the past year. She reported that
90 percent of adults who snoke say they usually buy cigarettes
wWithin their comunity, while 98 percent buy them in Al aska.
Most snokers want to quit and they buy their cigarettes one pack
at a tine, she pointed out, and 34 percent get them from
conveni ence stores or gas stations, 25 percent from grocery

stores, and 7 percent from liquor or drug stores. She said
there is also the issue of Internet sales that was addressed in
the tobacco tax stanp bill last year, and she hopes that DOR
will address further the measures they are taking to stem that
tide. She enphasized that the tide she is nost interested in
stenming is the trenmendous health care cost and burden on the
state by allowing the tobacco epidemc to continue. "It's
killing our kids and we can't |et that happen,” she concl uded.
Nunber 0032

MARI AH WARREN identified herself as born in Al aska and a full-
time college student working part-time at a supermarket in
Juneau. In her experience in both of those venues, she said it
is very apparent that there is a direct link between the cost of
cigarettes and who's snoking. She shared a story about a young
wonman who came into the store to purchase cigarettes who said,
"I wish they would raise the tax. If they get just a little
nore expensive, |'mgoing to have to quit."

TAPE 04-16, SIDE A

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 26- March 24, 2004



M5. WARREN continued to say that selling cigarettes is her | east
favorite part of working in retail because her enployers are
making a profit from"dealing in death.™

Nunmber 0116

STEVE WARREN, Menber, Al aska Tobacco Control Alliance, said he
has worked to hel p people stop snoking his whole life. He said,
"W have to face up to the fact that the tobacco industry,
despite their claimng that they are selling a | egal product for
adults, are working very hard at addicting our children.” He
t hanked the commttee for their past actions in hel ping reduce
the rate that teens are snoking by 50 percent. The new $1 per
pack tax increase will reduce teen tobacco use, despite what is
being said to distract from that issue. "Every other kid that
we can help keep fromstarting snmoking is going to be saved from
a premature death fromthat addiction,” he pointed out.

Number 0326

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director, AARP, related that AARP is the
| ar gest organi zati on of grandparents in the world. He said he
is confident that no grandparents would be happy to know that
their grandchildren have started to snoke. Many AARP nenbers
snoke, or used to snmoke, and know how difficult it is to quit.
If raising the cost of tax on cigarettes hel ps prevent Al aska's
youth from starting to snoke, [AARP] is very strongly in favor
[of the bill], he said. He said [AARP] is very inpressed with
the data in the governor's transmttal letter indicating that
Al aska Natives, and particularly Alaska Native high schoo
student s, snoke at much  hi gher rates than non- Nati ve
popul ati ons. He strongly recommended that sonme of the noney
generated by the tax increase be wused to target cessation
efforts for Native snokers, especially Native youth. He called
the bill good econom c policy and good health policy that mnakes
sense and is fair. On behal f of AARP, he strongly reconmended
t he passage of HB 538.

CHAI R HAWKER said the letter M. Luby faxed to the conmittee has
been included in the packet.

Nunber 0449

KATTARYNA STILES, Al aska Native Health Board, characterized this
bill as inportant |egislation because it will save lives, raise
noney, and reduce health care costs. She said she appreciates

Conmmi ssioner G lbertson's comments that Al aska Natives have the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -27- March 24, 2004



nost to gain by passage of this |egislation. She expl ai ned
that, according to the [2003 Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey], 55
percent of Al aska Native youth snoke, and neasures need to be
taken to keep tobacco out of the hands of Native youth. Raising
the price of cigarettes and tobacco products so that kids can't
afford them would be a trenmendous step in the right direction

she renmarked. She nentioned that another serious problem is
that 29 percent of pregnant Al aska Native wonen snoke, which
causes devastating health effects to the unborn children. I n

western Alaska, that figure goes up to 57 percent, she said
She concluded by saying that the estimated annual cost of
snmoking to the Alaska Native health care systemis $48 mllion
and this bill will save noney by reducing health care costs as
wel | as generate noney and save |ives.

Number 0713

JENNI FER  APP, Al aska  Advocacy Director, American Heart
Associ ation, reported that the Anerican Heart Association is a
national voluntary health agency whose mssion is to reduce
disability and death from cardi ovascul ar di sease and stroke, and
it strongly supports this bill. Smoking is the |eading
preventabl e cause of cardiovascular disease in Alaska and is
responsi ble for one out of every five deaths in the state. The
Al aska public subsidizes the significant cost associated wth

snoking of over $260 mllion a year. These expenses don't
include health costs caused by exposure to second-hand snoke,
spit tobacco, pipes, or cigars. O her non-health care costs

from tobacco include property loss from snoking-related fires.
She noted that the Anchorage fire department reported that every
house fire in the past year was caused by a burning cigarette.
The cost of snobking to the public is about $6.38 per pack, she
said. She called the bill a "win, win, win" situation.

Nunber 1123

Bl LL BOUMENS, Tobacco Educator, Al aska Native Medical Center,
said in Cctober 1997, when the first tobacco tax went into
effect, his classes were very full. He said the purpose of the
bill is to prevent youth from starting to snoke. As an Al aska
Native he said he has seen the effects of snoking on his people.
He said his dad quit snoking 24 years ago, but currently has
| ung cancer. He urged the passage of this bill to help prevent
youth fromstarting to snoke.

Nunber 1250

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 28- March 24, 2004



JCELLE HALL, nother of two, said she is able to testify today
because her nother is taking care of the Kkids. She stated her
support for the increase in the tobacco tax on behalf of all of
the parents who couldn't testify today. She urged the commttee

to keep children in m nd when debating the bill. She said that
talking to kids about smoking is an effective way to prevent
snoki ng. She spoke in strong support of the bill asking the

commttee to inplenent public health policy to help parents
prevent their kids from snoking

Nunber 1522

SHELLEY WALLACE said she is shocked by the nunber of kids who
use tobacco in Dillingham and Bristol Bay. She said she has no
grandparents because of tobacco. "Stopping our kids from

starting is the nost inportant thing we can do," she said. She
urged passage of the bill

CHAIR HAWKER replied that there are nenbers of the conmttee
from Ms. Wallace's area who understand what she is saying about
the problem of youth snoking in rural Al aska.

Nunber 1649

JEAN MARIE CRUMB, Chair-elect, Al aska Tobacco Control Alliance
(ATCA), spoke as a life-long Al askan and Al aska Native, and
reported that ATCA is a coalition of health care providers
representing over 200 organizations and individuals. She
encour aged support of HB 538, saying, "There is no single action
that you could take to protect the health of Alaskans than to
raise the tobacco tax." She related her opinion that if this
| egislation were to pass, fewer young people would begin
snoki ng, fewer babies would die of Sudden Infant Death Syndrone

[SIDS], and nore adults would quit. She urged passage of the
bill.
Nunmber 1816

CAROLI NE RENNER sai d she was born and raised in Al aska and spoke
of her personal experience both in Anchorage and when working in
Bet hel . She spoke about developing nicotine dependence
treatment prograns around the state in primary health care
centers and in clinics. She said an unknown factor is how many
children are using tobacco because children younger than mddle
school are not surveyed about their tobacco use, which she said
is of great concern. She also discussed her concern about
prenatal exposure to nicotine and said that those babies are

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -29- March 24, 2004



nore likely to becone addicted. She nentioned a paper she has
witten in Preventive Medicine about children as young as three

becom ng addicted to tobacco. She asked the conmttee to pass
the bill and save lives.
Nunber 2148

CHAI R HAWKER asked if there was any nore public testinony.

Nunber 2248

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked Conmm ssioner G lbertson if he would
provide a graph to show the rel ationship between the tax and the
consunption rate in Al aska, simlar to the graph provided by the
Nat i onal Center for Tobacco Free Kids in the packet.

CHAI R HAWKER said it woul d be request ed.

[ HB 538 was heard and hel d. ]

[ HB 493 was schedul ed but not heard.]

ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
9:05 a.m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 30- March 24, 2004



